
 
 

PUBLIC MEETING AGENDA 
KALAMAZOO PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

March 18, 2024 5:00 p.m. 
Board Room, Central Library   

315 S. Rose St. Kalamazoo, MI 49007 
Click here to join the meeting 

or by calling 
+1 917-933-5523  

Then enter meeting code: 
868300841#  

Approval of Agenda   
                                                                                           
I. ROLL CALL 

 
II. RECOGNITIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 
III. PERSONS REQUESTING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD  

 
IV. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Minutes of the Meeting of February 5, 2024 
B. Minutes of the Meeting of February 26, 2024 
C. Personnel Items (acceptance of consent calendar) 

 
V. FINANCIAL REPORT 

A. Financial Reports for the Period Ending February 29, 2024 (action) 

 
VI. REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Recommendations 

A. Revision of Shared Leave Program (action) 

 

Reports 

A. Alma Powell Branch Service Update 
 

VII. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

A. Finance and Budget Committee 

B. Personnel Committee 

C. Fund Development Committee  

D. Director’s Building Advisory Committee 

E. Bylaw Review Committee 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NDVmMTM2ZGQtMDk1My00Mjc4LTg2ODMtZGIwNDgxMzhmOTI1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2243667844-e654-4247-8a0d-9f830110ffa6%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22da19b681-7659-4b63-88ad-a43ba5f030e4%22%7d
tel:+19179335523,,523636765
tel:+19179335523,,868300841
http://www.kpl.gov/


F. President’s Committee 

 

VIII. OTHER BUSINESS 

A. Director’s Report 

 
IX. PERSONS REQUESTING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 

 
X. COMMENTS BY TRUSTEES 
 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Beginning January 1, 2022, The KPL Board of Trustees Meetings will be held in-person to comply 
with the Michigan Open Meetings Act. Safety precautions will be in place to adjust to pandemic 
circumstances. Meetings will continue to be streamed virtually, with attendees having the 
ability to provide public comments in person and online during those points on the agenda. In 
person and online public commenters have a time limit of three minutes.  
 
Online Public Comment Guidelines  
During “Public Comment” online participants will have the opportunity to address the Board and 
will be unmuted. There will be an opportunity to speak at the beginning of the meeting and the 
end. Public commenters are asked to state their name, address, and to keep comments to three 
minutes during each Public Comment period. During the public comment period board members 
and administrators attending the meeting are unable to answer any questions. If you have any 
questions, after stating your name, address, and contact information, please state your 
question. The Kalamazoo Public Library will respond to the question via the contact information 
given in a reasonable time frame. To provide public comment, please use the following tools in 
the Teams meeting. Use the “Raise Hand” function by pressing *5 to be called upon by the 
Board Chair, and press *6 to unmute. Please state your name and address. Use the “Q&A” 
window with your name and public comment and the Board Chair or designee will read it out 
loud. The Board Chair will ask if there are any remaining participants who would like to address 
the Board before continuing. 



IV. A. 

53 
 

Kalamazoo Public Library 
OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

PUBLIC MEETING 
Date: February 5, 2024 

Time:  5:00 p.m. 
Location: Van Deusen Room, Central Branch 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
President Miller called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL: 
The agenda was approved.  
                                                                    

I. ROLL CALL 
Present: Jannie Williams, Christy Roth, Kori Jock, Emily Greenman Wright, Linda Mah, Lisa 
Godfrey, Denise Miller 

 
Absent: None 

 
II. PERSONS REQUESTING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD   

Roxanne Everbearing, a community member, stated that one of the most exciting things 

about living in her current home is having a library in walking distance. She stated that one 

of the first things she and her littles did upon coming to Kalamazoo was make a goal to visit 

all five of the Kalamazoo Public Library (KPL) branches, which they have already achieved. 

Everbearing continued by stating that she feels very privileged to have private 

transportation to be able to go to other branches. She said that for her family it’s a relatively 

small loss to lose walkability to the library [Alma Powell Branch] when her family has access 

to a vehicle. She stated she’s really here on behalf of so many of her neighbors who don’t 

have that privilege and who have a higher need for the resources that the library provides to 

the community. Everbearing said she acknowledges the situation that KPL has found itself in 

with the legal liability of continuing to operate out of that space [Douglass Community 

Association], but she feels very much that was a situation of KPL’s own making and the 

situation was not handled proactively. She continues by saying it was to her understanding 

that were months of conversation leading up to the decision to close this branch, trying to 

resolve things with the Douglass Community Association and that resolution could be 

reached again. She asked if KPL could have been a little bit further out ahead of this 

situation. She stated the library could have served the community better and not created 

this lurch in services that she is experiencing now. She said she keeps imagining children 

showing up after school and not even knowing that the library is closed because of the 

speed with which this thing was executed. Everbearing said she acknowledges that at this 

point all that we can do is stop the bleeding and come up with a plan as soon as possible.  



IV. A. 

54 
 

Michael Leonard, a community member, stated he supports the notion that the Kalamazoo 

Public Library has some ideas to ameliorate the issue. He continued by stating the idea to 

ameliorate the issue should not just find a new place to rent but also a permanent location 

considering that is part of what led to this crisis. Leonard continued by stating that he grew 

up in a community where he greatly benefited from free access to information. Also, a 

library is a place where you can go that is warm, and not only warm but gives access like no 

other place in society. He stated he is an anthropologist and the whole idea of access to free 

information is wonderful, and a rental space needs to happen as soon as possible. Then the 

goal of permanent space as soon as possible.  

III. CLOSED SESSION: TO REVIEW LEGAL OPINION WITH ATTORNEY MICHELLE CROCKETT 
 
MOTION: L. GODFREY MOVED AND E. GREENMAN WRIGHT SUPPORTED THE MOTION TO 
MOVE TO A CLOSED SESSION.  
 
Roll Call Vote: J. Williams – yes; L. Godfrey – yes; L. Mah – yes; K. Jock – yes; C. Roth – yes; E. 
Greenman Wright –yes; D. Miller - yes   
 
MOTION CARRIED 7-0 
 
Trustees moved to a closed session at 5:10 p.m.  
 
MOTION: L. GODFREY MOVED AND J. WILLIAMS SUPPORTED THE MOTION TO MOVE TO AN 
OPEN SESSION.  
 
Roll Call Vote: J. Williams – yes; L. Godfrey – yes; L. Mah – yes; K. Jock – yes; C. Roth – yes; E. 
Greenman Wright –yes; D. Miller - yes   
 
MOTION CARRIED 7-0 
 
Trustees moved to a open session at 8:04 p.m. 

 
IV. BOARD DISCUSSION: BOARD DEVELOPMENT 

 
MOTION: D. MILLER MOVED AND J. WILLIAMS SUPPORTED THE MOTION FROM THE 
PRESIDENTIAL COMMITTEE TO CONTINUE DISCUSSION WITH THE DOUGLASS COMMUNITY 
ASSOCIATION BOARD.  
 
Roll Call Vote: J. Williams – yes; L. Godfrey – yes; L. Mah – yes; K. Jock – yes; C. Roth – yes; E. 
Greenman Wright –yes; D. Miller - yes   
 
MOTION CARRIED 7-0 
 
MOTION: L. GODFREY MOVED AND L. MAH SUPPORTED THE MOTION TO HOLD THE 
DISCUSSION ON BOARD DEVELOPMENT TO THE NEXT BOARD MEETING.  
 



IV. A. 

55 
 

Roll Call Vote: J. Williams – yes; L. Godfrey – yes; L. Mah – yes; K. Jock – yes; C. Roth – yes; E. 
Greenman Wright –yes; D. Miller - yes   
 
MOTION CARRIED 7-0 

 
V. ADJOURNMENT 

Hearing no objection, President Miller adjourned the meeting at 8:05 p.m. 
 

 

X__________________________ 

                                                                                    Jannie Williams   

                                                                          Secretary 



IV. B. 

56 
 

Kalamazoo Public Library 
OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

PUBLIC MEETING 
Date: February 26, 2024 

Time:  5:00 p.m. 
Location: Van Deusen Room, Central Library 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
President Miller called the meeting to order at 5:02 p.m. 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL: 
The agenda was approved.  
                                                                    

I. ROLL CALL 
Present: Jannie Williams, Lisa Godfrey, Christy Roth, Kori Jock, Linda Mah, Denise Miller 

 
Absent: Emily Greenman Wright 
 

II. RECOGNITIONS, RESOLUTIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 

III. PERSONS REQUESTING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD  

Roxanne Everbearing, a community member, stated that she’s excited about the Alma 

Powell branch update. She stated that the board should consider how different a library 

closure might have gone down if it had been one of the other branches that had closed. She 

said she thinks that area that is being impacted is largely lacking in resources to organize 

effectively and get voices out. Everbearing said that she wants to make sure that the lack of 

public outcry is not equated to the some level of okayness in the community. She asked if 

there is some way the public can get a summary of the feedback that was received through 

the online survey.  

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. Minutes of the Meeting of January 8, 2024 

B. Minutes of the Meeting of January 16, 2024 

C. Minutes of the Meeting of January 18, 2024 

D. Minutes of the Meeting of January 22, 2024 

E. Minutes of the Meeting of January 23, 2024 

F. Minutes of the Meeting of January 24, 2024 

G. Personnel Items: Trustee Roth acknowledged employee new hires, employee 

separations, and employee anniversaries within the organization. 

MOTION: K. JOCK MOVED AND L. MAH SUPPORTED THE MOTION TO ACCEPT THE CONSENT 
CALENDARS FOR THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023. 
 



IV. B. 

57 
 

Roll Call Vote: J. Williams – yes; L. Godfrey – yes; L. Mah – yes; K. Jock – yes; C. Roth – yes; 
D. Miller – yes.   

 
MOTION CARRIED 6-0 
 

V. FINANCIAL REPORT 
A. Financial Reports for the Month Ending January 31, 2024 
 
Recommendation: Interim Director Terry New recommended the Board accept the Financial 
Reports for the month ending January 31, 2024. 
 
MOTION: L. GODFREY MOVED AND K. JOCK SUPPORTED THE MOTION TO ACCEPT THE 
FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR THE MONTH ENDING JANUARY 31 2024. 
 
Discussion: Nnamdi Dike, Department Head of Budget and Finance, gave a summary 
highlighting the November Financial Reports. 
 
Roll Call Vote: J. Williams – yes; L. Godfrey – yes; L. Mah – yes; K. Jock – yes; C. Roth – yes; 
D. Miller – yes.   
 
MOTION CARRIED 6-0 

 
VI. REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
Reports 

 
A. Alma Powell Branch Update 

 
Tom Sowell, Department Head of Facilities Management, gave a presentation on the 
potential modular sites on the Northside along with the logistical process of constructing a 
modular on these sites. Department Head Sowell discussed the location options of the 
secondary temporary location, for there will be two temporary locations available during 
the Alma Powell branch transition and explained the structural condition of these 
properties. He gave a budget overview and explained the visual layout of the Alma Powell 
branch if it went under construction in the Douglass Community Association to 
accommodate a private entry and bathrooms that were compliant with the American with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA).   

 
 

VII. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
A. Finance and Budget Committee – Trustee Godfrey stated the committee discussed the 

cost of the Alma Powell temporary location and the cost associated with physically 
transitioning all the materials. The committee also discussed the consulting contract 
with Onyx Executive Leadership Consulting.   

 
B. Personnel Committee – Trustee Jock stated the committee discussed board 

development. The committee also discussed using a dashboard for board 



IV. B. 

58 
 

communication and notes storage. Trustee Jock also stated the committee will bring 
forward a proposal for the 360 evaluation for the director, currently the committee is 
obtaining quotes in accordance with the new purchasing policy.  
 

C. Fund Development Committee – No meeting. 
 

D. Director’s Building Advisory Committee – No meeting.  
  

E. Ad hoc Bylaw Review Committee – No meeting. 
 

F. President’s Committee – Trustee Williams stated the committee held a meeting with the 
Douglass Community Association board on Wednesday, February 7 and a joint press 
release was created. The press release was read on the radio station The Touch, and 
read to the public at the Douglass Lunch and Learn during Douglass Week.  

 

 
VIII. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

A. Director’s Report 
Interim Director New reported on the following topics: 

 

• Interim Director New informed the board that collections of popular print and Audio-
Visual materials have been put together for placement at the Boys & Girls Club within 
the Douglass Community Association and at the Interfaith Community Building. These 
materials are available to checkout for anyone. See the video on KPL social media. 

 

• Interim Director New stated bus tokens and wi-fi hotspots are currently available for KPL 
library card holders at Alma Powell outreach events and Mobile Library stops. She also 
stated the Mobile Library has added 3 new Northside locations to their regular schedule. 
Interim Director New continued by stating the outreach events that have occurred in 
February.  

 

• The KPL Professional Development Team kicked off the return of KPL Academy, our 
internal continuing education program for all staff. The KPL Academy Purpose 
Statement is:  Delivering skills and knowledge that encourages lifelong learning of staff, 
thereby enhancing their contributions to the goals of KPL. The first sessions were 
offered at two library locations and virtually, and featured Midwest Collaborative for 
Library Services (MCLS) staff sharing information and tips about resources available 
through the MeL databases. 30 staff attended over the 3 sessions in January. Staff 
reported “learning a lot more than they realized” and “learning things they would 
immediately use with patrons”. KPL Academy continues in March with Municipal 
Employees’ Retirement System (MERS) presenting sessions on retirement planning and 
the KPL 457 program.   

 

• Reading Together has kicked off with a 3-session book discussion at the WMU Center for 
the Study of Ethics in Society, to be followed by discussions on Thursday, February 15 at 
Richland Community Library and on Thursday, February 22 at Bell’s Eccentric Café, 



IV. B. 

59 
 

hosted by KVCC Library. The first official Reading Together event will be a panel 
presentation discussing Cultural Appropriation vs Cultural Appreciation on Wednesday, 
February 28 at 6:00 p.m. in the Van Deusen Room at the Central Library.  

 

• The Kalamazoo Public Library (KPL) will be participating in Kalamazoo Public Schools 
Literacy Nights on Wednesday, February 28 and Thursday, February 29. This event 
brings many KPL staff members together and provides meaningful interactions with KPS 
students and their families.  

 

• For the upcoming “What’s Up, I Can’t Read: Literacy and Community” event featuring 
TikTok literacy champion, Oliver James; Sandra Farag and Christopher Maiytt evaluated 
and chose Mt. Zion as the venue. Sandra Farag will be moderating the session at Mt. 
Zion on Thursday, April 18, 2024, from 5:00-6:30 pm. This event is a joint effort between 
KPL and the Kalamazoo Literacy Council, and registration is required.  

 

• Technology Services is working on providing video gaming opportunities for adults using 
specialized gaming PCs and equipment.  These PCs will be located on the 2nd floor at 
Central and are expected to be commissioned in the Spring. 

 

• The Senior Citizen Breakfast has also become a big hit as we had over 20 senior citizens 
at Eastwood attend in January. The Ecumenical Center bused their members over and 
plan to return for this month’s program. They enjoyed the chair yoga as well as the 
breakfast that was provided by Generations Catering. 

 

• Attendees at this month’s Coffee & Conversations were able to make their own hygiene 
kits at Central. Jennifer Purrenhage, Social Work Intern, was able to secure 250 pairs of 
socks and two large donations of menstrual hygiene items. 

 

• Interim Director New mentioned the Henrietta Lacks traveling museum is opening their 
exhibit at the Arcus Center, which opens on Monday, February 26 and will end on 
Friday, March 15 .  

 

• Interim Director New also mentioned the open house for the new Northside Association 
for Community Development (NACD) Executive Director Elizabeth Washington, which 
will be on Friday, March 1 from 5:30 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. at the NACD building on Park 
Street. 

 
B. Committee Assignments 

Finance and Budget Committee 
Kori Jock 
Lisa Godfrey 
Emily Greenman Wright 
 
Personnel Committee 
Jannie Williams 
Linda Mah 
Christy Roth 



IV. B. 

60 
 

Fund Development Committee 
Lisa Godfrey  
Christy Roth 
Denise Miller 
 
Building Advisory Committee 
Lisa Godfrey 
Jannie Williams 
Christy Roth 
 
Bylaw Review Committee 
Emily Greenman Wright 
Linda Mah 
Kori Jock 
 
MOTION: K. JOCK MOVED AND J. WILLIAMS SUPPORTED THE MOTION TO ACCEPT THE 
COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS. 
 
Roll Call Vote: J. Williams – yes; L. Godfrey – yes; L. Mah – yes; K. Jock – yes; C. Roth – 
yes; D. Miller – yes.   
 
MOTION CARRIED 6-0 

 
C. Board Development 

President Miller started the discussion of board development by reviewing an edited 
draft proposal from Onyx Executive Leadership Consulting. Trustees discussed together 
as a whole about the cost associated with the proposal, and deciding to change the 
method of payment to invoicing Onyx Executive Leadership Consulting to ensure 
Kalamazoo Public Library is getting billed only for the services being provided. Then the 
Trustees deliberated whether free and other professional services, such as the Michigan 
Library Association, should be considered for continued learning on Roberts Rules and 
the Open Meetings Act. Trustees added in new revisions to have a monetary cap for the 
proposal based on the discussion of seeking alternative services. 
 
MOTION: J. WILLIAMS MOVED AND K. JOCK SUPPORTED THE MOTION TO MOVE 
FORWARD WITH THE PROPOSAL WITH THE ADDED REVISIONS. 
 
Roll Call Vote: J. Williams – yes; L. Godfrey – no; L. Mah – no; K. Jock – yes; C. Roth – 
yes; D. Miller – yes.   
 
MOTION CARRIED 4-2 

 

IX. PERSONS REQUESTING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
 
Roxanne Everbearing, a community member, stated she appreciated the Alma Powell 
branch update, and that information received from the update was not different from the 



IV. B. 

61 
 

public forums that were held. She said it calls into question on how much ground work has 
been done on this particular project.  
 

X. COMMENTS BY TRUSTEES 

• K. Jock thanked the staff for their hard work and that she’s excited about being a 

part of the reading challenge.  

 

• L. Mah thanked Department Head Sowell, Interim Director New, and staff for the 

work being done for the Alma Powell branch transition. She said she looks forward 

to seeing what comes next. Trustee Mah thanked Interim Director New separately 

for the Director’s Report updates, and she’s interested in hearing about the KPL 

Academy in a report. She also offered congratulations to Elizabeth Washington for 

being the new Executive Director at NACD.  

 

• L. Godfrey echoed thanks to the staff for their work. She also thanked Executive 

Assistant, Bionca Stewart, for wearing her KPL T-Shirt while doing a Public Media 

Network podcast.  

 

• J. Williams echoed thanks to the staff. She separately thanked Interim Director New 

and Department Head Sowell, and stated they are definitely stepping up to the 

tasks. She also said to the Trustees that she has heard excitement from the 

community regarding the Alma Powell branch transition. Trustee Williams 

continued by saying she thinks the work is worth it, and she thanks everyone for 

stepping up to the plate.  

 

• C. Roth echoed thanks to the staff for their hard work in regards to the Alma Powell 

branch transition. She also stated she had the pleasure of attending the final First 

Saturday event at the Alma Powell Branch, and it had a great turnout. She hopes 

those events will carry over at the Eastwood branch and eventually back over to the 

Northside community.  

 

• D. Miller thanked the Trustees for doing the hard work of supporting a library and 

wonderful community and appreciated the Trustees for working through difficult 

conversations. She thanked Karen Trout, Librarian Lead, for talking her into being on 

the Yellowface Culture Appropriation vs Cultural Appreciation event, and thanked 

Librarian Lead Trout for her hard work on putting the event together. President 

Miller echoed thanks to Department Head Sowell and Interim Director New for their 

work on the Alma Powell branch transition.  

XI. ADJOURNMENT 
Hearing no objection, President Miller adjourned the meeting at 7:01 p.m. 
 

 
 



IV. B. 

62 
 

X__________________________ 

                                                                                    Jannie Williams   

                                                                          Secretary 



 
 

V. A.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMO 

 

 

TO: Library Trustees FROM: Terry New, Interim 
Library Director 

    
RE: Financial Reports for the Month 

Ending February 29, 2024 
DATE: March 18, 2024 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation: 

 

I recommend the Board accept the Financial Reports for the month ending February 29, 2024. 

 

 

Executive Summary: 

 

Notes to the reports are included for your information. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 Lisa Godfrey, Treasurer 
 



 

 

Kalamazoo Public Library 

Financial Reports for February 2024 
 

 

 
Governmental Pooled Funds, Sources and Uses and Combined Balance Sheet 

 

The Library’s Governmental Pooled Funds totaled $17,278,395 at the end of February. Sources of funds 

totaled $5,119,081 during the month, highlighted by the receipt of property tax revenue from 

municipalities within the KPL taxing district ($5,082,383). Uses of funds totaled $1,238,463 in February, 

led by Salaries & Wages, Prepaid Expenditures, and Materials. Combined Balance sheet activity was 

normal for the month. Please note, however, the combined balance sheet does not include updated 

information for the library’s endowment fund, as the February statement was not available at the time 

this financial summary was written. 

 

Revenue, Expenditures ‐‐ General Operating Fund 

 

The library recognized $5,119,047 of General Fund revenue during February, led by property tax receipts 

from the City of Kalamazoo ($2,871,169) and Oshtemo Township ($1,683,828). General Fund 

expenditures recorded during the month totaled $1,051,466, and cumulative General Fund expenditures 

through January totaled $8,353,162, or 58% of the adjusted budget for the fiscal year. 

 

Capital Improvement Plan 

 

Capital Improvement Plan activity for February includes the recognition of $740,104 of revenue, 

highlighted by the receipt of KPL’s share of Local Community Stabilization Funds from the State of 

Michigan. Expenditures during the month totaled $44,609, led by spending on the Central Steam Boiler 

project (P#826, totaling $11,867) and carpet installation at Washington Square (P#811W, totaling 

$21,252). Major CIP encumbrances outstanding include building and infrastructure projects at Central 

Library, Washington Square, Eastwood and Oshtemo branch (various CIP projects totaling $179,020) at 

the end of February. 

 

Special Revenue Fund 

 

Financial activity in the Special Revenue Fund during February was highlighted by the recognition of 

$13,064 of expenditures, led by spending under the Stryker Johnston grant for ONEplace operations, the 

purchase of children’s materials for Ready‐to‐Read, and authorized spending under the Friends of KPL 

Mini‐Grants. 

 

Endowment Fund 

 

The Bureau of Labor Statistics reported the addition of 275,000 jobs during February, slightly above 

market expectations. BLS also reported the Consumer Price Index rose 3.2% for the twelve‐month 

period through February, a 0.1% increase from the previous month. The market value of the Library’s 

Endowment Fund at the end of February was not available at the time of this internal financial report as 

noted above. 



BEGINNING CASH BALANCE * 13,397,777$      
* Including short‐term investments

SOURCES OF CASH:

 Property Tax Receipts 5,082,383$        
 IFT/CFT, PILOT, Other Tax Receipts 129$

 State Aid/Renaissance Zone Reimbursement ‐$

 USF Refunds/Law Library Contract/District Ct. Penal Fines ‐$

 Interest Income 25,337$             

 Library Fines & Fees 1,407$                

 Other Sources: Gifts, Grants, & Reimbursements 9,790$                

 Other (CIP and SRF Revenue, etc.) 35$  

   TOTAL SOURCES OF CASH 5,119,081$            

USES OF CASH:
 Salaries & Wages (455,297)$          

 Benefits (99,844)$            

 Materials (167,518)$          

 Operating Expenditures (28,068)$            

 Facilities (107,960)$          

 Technical Services (18,169)$            

 Purchased Services (58,454)$            

 Other (77,892)$            

 Capital Expenditures (65,714)$            

 Prepaid Expenditures (159,546)$          

   TOTAL USES OF CASH (1,238,463)$          

ENDING CASH 17,278,395$      

POOLED CASH ACCOUNTS:
Petty Cash 250$

Flagstar Bank General Checking 176,187$           

First National NOW & ACH Transfer Accounts 164,876$           

Consumers Credit Union ‐ Share Savings/Navia Admin 23,166$             

Consumers Credit Union ‐ General Checking 23,110$             

Midwest Business Exchange Account/Paypal 34,948$             

POOLED CASH ACCOUNTS 422,536$               

POOLED INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS:

Flagstar Bank Premier Savings, MM & CD Accts 7,237,636$        

First National Bank ICS Savings, MM & CDs 7,608,962$        

Consumers Credit Union MM Acct & CD Accts 2,009,261$        

POOLED INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS 16,855,859$         

TOTAL CASH AND POOLED INVESTMENTS 17,278,395$      

Kalamazoo Public Library
Sources and Uses of Funds

Governmental Pooled Funds Only
For the month ending February 29, 2024

February



Operating
Capital 

Improvement

Special 

Revenue
Endowment

Assets

     Cash & Equivalents

          Cash & Checking 7,441,827$              4,371,676$         370,531$           856,077$             

          Investments 5,094,361$              ‐$                     1,691,386$       5,516,201$          

     Total Cash & Equivalents 12,536,188$            4,371,676$         2,061,917$       6,372,278$          

     Accounts Receivable

          Accounts Receivable 243$                         611,272$             ‐$                   ‐$                      

     Total Accounts Receivable 243$                         611,272$             ‐$                   ‐$                      

     Taxes Receivable

          Taxes Receivable ‐$                          ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                      

     Total Taxes Receivable ‐$                          ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                      

     Other Assets

          Other Assets 207,386$                 ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                      

          Due to/from Other Funds ‐$                          ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                      

     Total Other Assets 207,386$                 ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                      

Total Assets 12,743,817$            4,982,948$         2,061,917$       6,372,278$          

Liabilities and Fund Balance

     Current Liabilities

          Accounts Payable (458)$                        ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                      

          Salaries Payable (5,387)$                    ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                      

          Retirement Payable (30,974)$                  ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                      

     Total Current Liabilities (36,819)$                  ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                      

     Long Term Liabilities

          Long Term Liabilities 190,000$                 ‐$                     345,000$           ‐$                      

     Total 190,000$                 ‐$                     345,000$           ‐$                      

     Net Assets

          Fund Balance 12,590,636$            4,982,948$         1,716,917$       6,372,278$          

     Total 12,590,636$            4,982,948$         1,716,917$       6,372,278$          

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 12,743,817$            4,982,948$         2,061,917$       6,372,278$          

As of  February 29, 2024

Kalamazoo Public Library
Combined Balance Sheet

Office of Finance and Budget



Kalamazoo Public Library

General Operating Fund

Month of February 2024

Activity Encumbrances CEB YTD Budget Left % Complete

Month of February

1 - General Fund

Revenue

$5,082,383 $0 $13,740,379 $7,976,019 $5,764,360  58.0%          Property Taxes

$129 $0 $119,100 $19,790 $99,310  16.6%          Other Taxes

$1,407 $0 $31,340 $22,146 $9,194  70.7%          Fines and Fees

$0 $0 $136,232 $0 $136,232  0.0%          District Court Penal Fines

$0 $0 $189,000 $189,000 $0  100.0%          Local Support

$25,337 $0 $240,000 $239,654 $346  99.9%          Interest Income

$5,834 $0 $248,812 $124,191 $124,621  49.9%          State Aid and Reimbursements

$3,956 $0 $130,296 $33,253 $97,043  25.5%          Other

$5,119,047 $0 $14,835,159 $8,604,053 $6,231,106  58.0%Total Revenue

Expenditures

     Salaries

$61,232 $0 $918,568 $465,399 $453,169  50.7%          Administrator Salaries

$137,527 $0 $1,774,897 $1,079,303 $695,594  60.8%          Librarian Salaries

$76,357 $0 $1,019,466 $614,644 $404,822  60.3%          Supervisory Technical Salaries

$128,940 $0 $1,659,772 $1,044,718 $615,054  62.9%          Library Assistant Salaries

$18,463 $0 $295,000 $142,089 $152,911  48.2%          Interns

$48,205 $0 $741,960 $403,233 $338,727  54.3%          Hourly Staff

$9,061 $0 $89,482 $69,731 $19,751  77.9%          Substitute Salaries

$0 $0 ($35,000) $0 ($35,000)  0.0%          Vacancy Credit

$479,786 $0 $6,464,145 $3,819,117 $2,645,028  59.1%     Total

     Benefits

$92,513 $0 $1,016,438 $709,289 $307,149  69.8%          Employee Insurance

$52,757 $0 $1,003,143 $524,262 $478,881  52.3%          Retirement

$35,298 $0 $493,693 $285,201 $208,492  57.8%          Employer FICA-Medicare

$4,453 $0 $105,550 $55,768 $49,782  52.8%          Other Benefits

$185,021 $0 $2,618,824 $1,574,520 $1,044,304  60.1%     Total

     Materials

$47,343 $0 $571,300 $373,910 $197,390  65.4%          Adult Books

$7,299 $0 $137,000 $71,175 $65,825  52.0%          Juvenile Books

$639 $0 $47,660 $36,013 $11,647  75.6%          Periodicals

$80,955 $0 $477,000 $231,978 $245,022  48.6%          Audio-Visual Material

$10,207 $0 $216,430 $143,782 $72,648  66.4%          Digital Materials

$2,000 $0 $35,000 $15,041 $19,959  43.0%          Library of Things

$148,444 $0 $1,484,390 $871,900 $612,490  58.7%     Total

     Facilities

$13,840 $0 $86,000 $46,671 $39,329  54.3%          Fuel

$12,543 $0 $191,390 $121,243 $70,147  63.3%          Electricity

$2,262 $0 $13,600 $12,207 $1,393  89.8%          Water

Office of Finance and BudgetPage 1 of 3



Kalamazoo Public Library

General Operating Fund

Month of February 2024

Activity Encumbrances CEB YTD Budget Left % Complete

Month of February

$11,282 $0 $90,000 $61,604 $28,396  68.4%          Custodial Supplies

$0 $0 $54,500 $30,195 $24,305  55.4%          Grounds Maintenance

$209 $0 $8,500 $4,874 $3,626  57.3%          Vehicle Maintenance

$19,878 $0 $139,700 $70,536 $69,164  50.5%          Building Repair

$37,942 $0 $133,700 $106,062 $27,638  79.3%          Building Operations

$97,956 $0 $717,390 $453,393 $263,997  63.2%     Total

     Operating Expenses

$9,362 $0 $143,150 $75,468 $67,682  52.7%          Supplies

$3,636 $0 $103,355 $45,846 $57,509  44.4%          Misc. Operating Expenses

$1,850 $0 $36,500 $25,178 $11,322  69.0%          Postage & Freight

$4,461 $0 $48,000 $24,204 $23,796  50.4%          Rent

$4,990 $0 $47,000 $13,637 $33,363  29.0%          Processing Supplies

$24,299 $0 $378,005 $184,332 $193,673  48.8%     Total

     Technical Services

$0 $0 $16,000 $0 $16,000  0.0%          F&E Repair & Maintenance

$8,822 $0 $400,443 $274,775 $125,668  68.6%          Software as Service

$6,766 $8,383 $189,065 $154,922 $34,143  81.9%          Software Licensing & Maint.

$7,284 $0 $155,040 $62,990 $92,050  40.6%          Telecommunications

$2,070 $0 $95,000 $49,345 $45,655  51.9%          Cataloging & Processing

$24,941 $8,383 $855,548 $542,032 $313,516  63.4%     Total

     Purchased Services

$30,864 $0 $446,052 $231,431 $214,621  51.9%          Security

$2,373 $0 $111,216 $78,011 $33,205  70.1%          Insurance

$3,763 $0 $50,000 $7,313 $42,688  14.6%          Legal Services

$3,670 $0 $128,600 $86,967 $41,633  67.6%          Printing Services

$1,996 $0 $40,000 $17,157 $22,843  42.9%          Advertising

$4,805 $0 $353,709 $161,346 $192,363  45.6%          Contracted Services

$47,471 $0 $1,129,577 $582,225 $547,352  51.5%     Total

     Other Expenditures

$29,118 $0 $431,300 $237,586 $193,714  55.1%          Programming

$272 $0 $50,000 $12,606 $37,394  25.2%          Tax Charge Backs

$4,225 $0 $68,260 $33,478 $34,782  49.0%          Staff Development

$9,190 $0 $122,410 $35,682 $86,728  29.1%          Travel & Conference

$744 $0 $14,520 $6,293 $8,227  43.3%          Board Expenses

$43,549 $0 $686,490 $325,644 $360,846  47.4%     Total

$1,051,466 $8,383 $14,334,369 $8,353,162 $5,981,207  58.3%Total

Transfers

     Transfers In

          Transfers from other funds $0 $0 ($152,984) $0 ($152,984)  0.0%

Office of Finance and BudgetPage 2 of 3



Kalamazoo Public Library

General Operating Fund

Month of February 2024

Activity Encumbrances CEB YTD Budget Left % Complete

Month of February

$0 $0 ($152,984) $0 ($152,984)  0.0%     Total Transfers In

     Transfers Out

          Transfers to other funds $528,728 $0 $528,728 $528,728 $0  100.0%

$528,728 $0 $528,728 $528,728 $0  100.0%     Total

$528,728 $0 $375,744 $528,728 ($152,984)  140.7%Total

Office of Finance and BudgetPage 3 of 3



Monthly 
Activity

Monthly 
Encumbrances

Activity YTD
Carryover 
Balance

Preliminary 
Estimate 
Budget

Balance 
Remaining

3 - Capital Improvement Plan Fund

REVENUE
          Other Local Gifts & Grants

               800 - Capital Improvement Plan 140,000$        -$                       140,000$       -$                 140,000$         -$                  

               830 - Computer & Technology Reserve -$                -$                       -$               -$                 -$                 -$                  
               884 - Digital Lab (Hub) Equipment -$                -$                       -$               -$                 -$                 -$                  

     Total Revenue 140,000$        -$                       140,000$       -$                 140,000$         -$                  

          State Aid & Reimbursements
               800 - Share of Local Community Stabilization Fund 600,104$        -$                       600,104$       -$                 471,272$         (128,832)$         

Total Revenue & State Aid 740,104$        -$                       740,104$       -$                 611,272$         (128,832)$         

EXPENDITURES
     Furnishings
               810 - Furnishings Reserve -$                       -$               121,202$         50,000$           171,202$           

          Total Furnishings Reserve -$                -$                       121,202$         50,000$           198,772$           

          Central Library
               803 - Central Building Furnishings -$                -$                       -$               15,820$           -$                 15,820$             
               812 - Office Furnishings - KPL Reorganization -$                -$                       -$               3,264$             -$                 3,264$               
               813 - Display/Public - Central -$                -$                       18,462$         68,277$           -$                 49,815$             
               818 - Circulation Room Furnishings -$                -$                       -$               -$                 -$                 -$                  
               829V -Van Duesen Renovations 5,549$            -$                       5,549$           -$                 -$                 (5,549)$             
               861 - IT Office Furnishings -$                -$                       -$               -$                 -$                 -$                  
               884F - Digital Lab Furnishings -$                -$                       -$               4,500$             -$                 4,500$               
               889 - Children's Room Table/Chairs -$                -$                       -$               6,809$             -$                 6,809$               
               892 - Local History Room Furniture -$                -$                       -$               1,000$             -$                 1,000$               
               892F - Local History Digitization - FFE -$                -$                       -$               1,371$             -$                 1,371$               

          Total Central Library 5,549$            -$                       24,011$         101,041$         -$                 77,030$             

          Branch Libraries
               815 - Workspaces & Public Areas - Oshtemo 1,334$            -$                       8,316$           30,968$           -$                 22,652$             
               815CF - Oshtemo Courtyard Furniture -$                -$                       -$               10,000$           -$                 10,000$             
               817 - Workspaces & Public Areas - WSQ -$                -$                       -$               27,945$           -$                 27,945$             
               881 - Eastwood/Powell - Furniture -$                -$                       -$               42,535$           -$                 42,535$             

          Total Branch Libraries 1,334$            -$                       8,316$           111,448$         -$                 103,132$           

          System-Wide Projects
               811F - Carpet Cleaning Equipment -$                -$                       -$               3,212$             -$                 3,212$               
               814 - Desks & Chairs - Multiple Departments 1,070$            -$                       3,821$           4,875$             -$                 1,054$               
               819 - Materials Lending Machine Project -$                -$                       -$               10,000$           -$                 10,000$             
               898F - Library of Things -- Furniture & Equipment -$                -$                       -$               7,491$             -$                 7,491$               

          Total System-Wide Projects 1,070$            -$                       3,821$           25,578$           -$                 21,757$             

     Total Furniture & Equipment 7,953$            -$                       36,148$         359,269$         50,000$           400,691$           

     Building Alterations
               820 - Building Alterations Reserve -$                -$                       -$               324,516$         550,000$         874,516$           

          Total Building Reserve -$                -$                       -$               324,516$         550,000$         874,516$           

          Structural Projects
               805 - Central Tile Maintenance & Replacement -$                -$                       -$               50,357$           -$                 50,357$             
               807 - Washington Square Bldg Projects -$                -$                       -$               23,500$           -$                 23,500$             
               809 - Washington Square Infrastructure Projects -$                -$                       -$               -$                 -$                 -$                  
               809E - Washington Square Exterior Projects -$                -$                       -$               290$                -$                 290$                  
               821 - Oshtemo Infrastructure Projects -$                -$                       766$              24,200$           -$                 23,434$             
               822 - Eastwood Infrastructure Projects -$                -$                       -$               -$                 -$                 -$                  

               822R - Eastwood Roof & Exterior Projects -$                -$                       -$               144,825$         140,000$         284,825$           

               823R - Oshtemo Branch Roof Project -$                -$                       16,555$         -$                 700,000$         683,445$           

               828 - Eastwood Building Projects -$                -$                       3,000$           19,440$           -$                 16,440$             
               828H - Eastwood Furnace Replacement -$                -$                       -$               5,902$             140,000$         145,902$           

Kalamazoo Public Library
Capital Improvement Plan Fund

Month of February 2024

Page 1 of 3 Office of Finance and Budget



Monthly 
Activity

Monthly 
Encumbrances

Activity YTD
Carryover 
Balance

Preliminary 
Estimate 
Budget

Balance 
Remaining

3 - Capital Improvement Plan Fund

Kalamazoo Public Library
Capital Improvement Plan Fund

Month of February 2024

          Total Structural Projects -$                -$                       20,321$         268,514$         980,000$         1,228,193$        

          Mechanical Projects

               825 - Central Chiller / Cooling tower -$                -$                       -$               175,000$         -$                 175,000$           

               825O - Central ONEplace Cooling tower -$                -$                       25,295$         25,845$           -$                 550$                  

               826 - Central Steam Boiler 11,867$          -$                       11,867$         971,778$         -$                 959,911$           
               841 - Central Louvers on AHU-2 -$                -$                       -$               45,000$           -$                 45,000$             
               887 - Generator, Central, Eastwood & Powell -$                -$                       -$               75,000$           -$                 75,000$             
               895 - Central Freight Elevator -$                -$                       -$               -$                 -$                 -$                  
               895PE - Central Passenger Elevator -$                -$                       26,714$         52,000$           -$                 25,286$             

          Total Mechanical Projects 11,867$          -$                       63,876$         1,344,623$      -$                 1,280,747$        

          Control & Security Systems
               827 - Security Systems 1,031$            -$                       4,008$           4,807$             -$                 799$                  
               827A - Library Access Controls Project -$                -$                       40,665$         61,615$           -$                 20,950$             
               827D - ADA Compliant Staff Doors -$                -$                       887$              19,000$           -$                 18,113$             

          Total Control & Security Systems 1,031$            -$                       45,560$         85,422$           -$                 39,862$             

          Other Facilities Projects
               806 - Central Restrooms -$                -$                       -$               3,629$             -$                 3,629$               
               808 - Dropbox Replacement -$                -$                       -$               18,889$           -$                 18,889$             
               811 - Carpet Master Plan - Central -$                -$                       -$               256,923$         -$                 256,923$           
               811E - Carpet Master Plan - Eastwood -$                -$                       -$               56,317$           -$                 56,317$             
               811W - Carpet Master Plan - WSQ 21,252$          (20,963)$                30,320$         54,270$           -$                 23,950$             
               816a - Library Space Study -$                -$                       -$               82,500$           -$                 82,500$             
               821C - Oshtemo Courtyard Improvements -$                -$                       850$              50,000$           -$                 49,150$             
               821P - Oshtemo Parking & Ramp Project -$                -$                       -$               147,370$         -$                 147,370$           
               823 - Oshtemo Building Projects -$                -$                       -$               98,109$           -$                 98,109$             
               824 - Eastwood Drop Ceiling -$                -$                       -$               -$                 -$                 -$                  
               829 - Central Building Projects -$                -$                       -$               22,577$           -$                 22,577$             
               829L - Central Exterior Lighting Replacement -$                -$                       7,800$           8,500$             -$                 700$                  
               829S - Central Sewage Pump Replacement -$                -$                       -$               -$                 -$                 -$                  
               892B - Local History Digitization - Bldg Alt -$                -$                       -$               -$                 -$                 -$                  
               893 -  Vehicles -$                -$                       -$               -$                 -$                 -$                  
               802 - COVID-Related Projects -$                -$                       -$               -$                 -$                 -$                  
               829V - Van Duesen Renovations -$                -$                       -$               -$                 -$                 -$                  

          Total Other Facilities Projects 21,252$          (20,963)$                38,970$         799,084$         -$                 760,114$           

     Total Building Alterations 34,150$          (20,963)$                168,727$       2,822,159$      1,530,000$      4,183,432$        

     Computer & Technology
               830 - Computer & Technology Reserve -$                -$                       -$               141,483$         60,000$           201,483$           

          Total Computer & Tech. Reserve -$                -$                       141,483$         60,000$           201,483$           

          Public Technology & Hardware
               831 - Computer Equipment & Peripherals 1,528$            -$                       27,134$         16,233$           40,000$           29,099$             
               843 - Branch digital signage -$                -$                       -$               4,443$             -$                 4,443$               
               844 - USB Charging Stations -$                -$                       -$               -$                 -$                 -$                  
               857 - Selfcheck Upgrade Project -$                -$                       -$               4,746$             -$                 4,746$               
               862 - AV Enhancements -$                -$                       -$               13,096$           -$                 13,096$             
               865 - Tech Innovation Projects 978$               -$                       978$              1,115$             -$                 137$                  
               884 - Digital Lab (The Hub) Equipment -$                -$                       3,327$           6,859$             -$                 3,532$               
               892A - Local History Digitization - Automation -$                -$                       -$               8,676$             -$                 8,676$               

          Total Public Technology & Hardware 2,506$            -$                       31,439$         55,168$           40,000$           63,729$             

          Portable Technology
               878 - Portable Devices -$                -$                       -$               11,209$           -$                 11,209$             

          Total Portable Technology -$                -$                       -$               11,209$           -$                 11,209$             

          Other Tech/Computer Equipment  
               854 - Other Tech/Computer Equipment -$                -$                       9,990$           6,043$             -$                 (3,947)$             

Page 2 of 3 Office of Finance and Budget



Monthly 
Activity

Monthly 
Encumbrances

Activity YTD
Carryover 
Balance

Preliminary 
Estimate 
Budget

Balance 
Remaining

3 - Capital Improvement Plan Fund

Kalamazoo Public Library
Capital Improvement Plan Fund

Month of February 2024

               855 - Communications Systems -$                -$                       1,060$           210$                -$                 (850)$                
               855PA - KPL PA System Project -$                -$                       -$               66,300$           -$                 66,300$             
               856 - IT Infrastructure Projects -$                -$                       -$               1,784$             -$                 1,784$               
               879 - Office scanners -$                -$                       -$               -$                 -$                 -$                  
               898 - Library of Things (Tech Related) -$                -$                       -$               -$                 -$                 -$                  

          Total Other Tech/Computer Equipment -$                -$                       11,050$         74,337$           -$                 63,287$             

          RFID/Circulation
               852 - RFID/ILS Equipment -$                -$                       -$               262$                -$                 262$                  

          Total RFID/Circulation Tech. -$                -$                       -$               262$                -$                 262$                  

     Total Computer & Technology 2,506$            -$                       42,489$         282,459$         100,000$         339,970$           

-$                 
Total CIP Expenditures 44,609$          (20,963)$                247,364$       3,463,887$      1,680,000$      4,924,093$        

Draw on Specific CIP Reserve: Oshtemo Infrastructure Projects: (150,000)$        

Draw on Specific CIP Reserve: Eastwood Infrastructure Projects: (90,000)$          
Transfer to Specific CIP Reserve: Mobile LIbrary: 80,000$           

APPROVED BUDGETED CIP EXPENDITURES + TRANSFERS TO SPECIFIC CIP RESERVES: 1,520,000$      

          

          Transfers
               800 -CIP Transfers (from) Other Funds -$                -$                       -$               -$                 -$                 -$                  
               800 -CIP Transfers to Other Funds -$                -$                       -$               -$                 -$                 -$                  

     Total -$                -$                       -$               -$                 -$                 -$                  

Total Transfers -$                -$                       -$               -$                 -$                 -$                  

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE (All Projects)  1,308,233$     

TOTAL NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) -- All Projects  695,495$        

ENDING FUND BALANCE (All Projects)  2,003,728$     

Page 3 of 3 Office of Finance and Budget



Kalamazoo Public Library

Special Revenue Fund

Month of February 2024

Activity Encumbrances Activity YTD PEB Budget Left % Complete

Month of February

Revenue

          Local Support

               233 - Ready to Read - Gifts $20 $0 $1,412 $4,000 $2,588  35.3%

               235 - Ready to Read - Spelling Bee $0 $0 $10,430 $5,000 ($5,430)  208.6%

               301 - Gifts & Memorials - Materials $15 $0 $350 $1,000 $650  35.0%

               306 - ONEplace Stryker Johnston Grant $0 $0 $0 $155,000 $155,000  0.0%

               308 - Library Gifts $0 $0 $2,002 $1,000 ($1,002)  200.2%

               311 - DEI Development $0 $0 $10,000 $0 ($10,000)  0.0%

               315C - AG Scholarship - KPL Funds $0 $0 $1,274 $0 ($1,274)  0.0%

               320 - Mobile Digital Access Project $0 $0 $10,000 $0 ($10,000)  0.0%

               325 - Friends of KPL Grants $0 $0 $7,000 $0 ($7,000)  0.0%

               325LT - Departmental Activites $0 $0 $5,000 $0 ($5,000)  0.0%

               390 - Youth Services Gifts & Memorials $0 $0 $3,940 $0 ($3,940)  0.0%

               390WC - Youth Writing Contest $0 $0 $2,000 $0 ($2,000)  0.0%

               397BTJ - Booker T. Jones Event $0 $0 $5,000 $5,000 $0  100.0%

$35 $0 $58,408 $171,000 $112,592  34.2%          Total Local Support

          Other

               235 - Ready to Read - Spelling Bee $0 $0 $420 $0 ($420)  0.0%

               315 - Amanda Green Scholarship $0 $0 $0 $16,200 $16,200  0.0%

               397 - KCF- Local History Fd (Patton Trust) $0 $0 $0 $80,462 $80,462  0.0%

$0 $0 $420 $96,662 $96,242  0.4%          Total Other Revenue

$35 $0 $58,828 $267,662 $208,834  22.0%Total Revenue

Expenditures

     Materials

          Adult Books

               301 - Gifts & Memorials - Materials $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $1,000  0.0%

$0 $0 $0 $1,000 $1,000  0.0%          Total Adult Books

          Juvenile Books

               233 - Ready to Read - Gifts $2,124 $0 $11,559 $10,000 ($1,559)  115.6%

               301 - Gifts & Memorials - Materials $17 $0 $52 $500 $448  10.4%

$2,141 $0 $11,611 $10,500 ($1,111)  110.6%          Total Juvenile Books

$2,141 $0 $11,611 $11,500 ($111)  101.0%     Total

     Operating Expenses

          Misc. Operating Expenses

               235 - Ready to Read - Spelling Bee $0 $0 $6,304 $4,500 ($1,804)  140.1%

               301A - Schwendener Lost Book Fund $0 $0 $60 $0 ($60)  0.0%

               305 - Law Library Gifts $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $2,000  0.0%

               306 - ONEplace Stryker Johnston Grant $385 $0 $2,304 $0 ($2,304)  0.0%

Office of Finance and BudgetPage 1 of 2



Kalamazoo Public Library

Special Revenue Fund

Month of February 2024

Activity Encumbrances Activity YTD PEB Budget Left % Complete

Month of February

               307 - ONEplace Nonprofit Services $0 $0 $0 $19,862 $19,862  0.0%

               308 - Library Gifts $0 $0 $520 $4,000 $3,480  13.0%

               310 - KPL Antiracism Transformation Tea $0 $0 $90 $3,000 $2,910  3.0%

               315 - Amanda Green Scholarship $0 $0 $0 $12,893 $12,893  0.0%

               320 - Mobile Digital Access Project $0 $0 $37,320 $0 ($37,320)  0.0%

               325 - Friends of KPL Grants $5,457 $0 $7,698 $5,000 ($2,698)  154.0%

               325LT - Departmental Activites $70 $0 $352 $0 ($352)  0.0%

               397 - KCF- Local History Fd (Patton Trust) $0 $0 $65,000 $84,368 $19,368  77.0%

               397BTJ - Booker T. Jones Event $0 $0 $22,159 $33,800 $11,641  65.6%

$5,912 $0 $141,806 $169,423 $27,617  83.7%          Total Misc. Operating Expenses

$5,912 $0 $141,806 $169,423 $27,617  83.7%     Total

     Other Expenditures

          Programming

               306 - ONEplace Stryker Johnston Grant $5,011 $0 $59,406 $125,000 $65,594  47.5%

$5,011 $0 $59,406 $125,000 $65,594  47.5%          Total Programming

          Travel & Conference

               306 - ONEplace Stryker Johnston Grant $0 $0 $1,277 $0 ($1,277)  0.0%

$0 $0 $1,277 $0 ($1,277)  0.0%          Total Travel & Conference

$5,011 $0 $60,683 $125,000 $64,317  48.5%     Total

$13,064 $0 $214,100 $305,923 $91,823  70.0%Total

Transfers

     Transfers In

          Transfers from other funds

               397BTJ - Booker T. Jones Event $0 $0 $0 ($20,000) ($20,000)  0.0%

$0 $0 $0 ($20,000) ($20,000)  0.0%     Total Transfers In

     Transfers Out

          Transfers to other funds

               306 - ONEplace Stryker Johnston Grant $0 $0 $0 $104,054 $104,054  0.0%

               325 - Friends of KPL Grants $0 $0 $1,000 $0 ($1,000)  0.0%

               397 - KCF- Local History Fd (Patton Trust) $0 $0 $0 $68,930 $68,930  0.0%

$0 $0 $1,000 $172,984 $171,984  0.6%     Total

$0 $0 $1,000 $152,984 $151,984  0.7%Total

Office of Finance and BudgetPage 2 of 2



VI. A. 
 

kpl.gov 

 

 

 

 

 
 

MEMO 
 

 

 

 
TO:   Library Trustees      FROM:        Terry New 
              Interim Library Director 
 
RE: Shared Leave Program Revision    DATE:         March 18, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
I recommend Board approval of the newly revised Shared Leave Program. 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
The Shared Leave Program is reviewed annually by the Shared Leave Committee which consists of 
members of each employee group.  The most recent revision to the program was approved by the Board 
in December 2021.  The current revisions specifically identify the new union group UKPLA as a separate 
employee group and other minor wording changes for clarity. 
 

 



5 
 

Kalamazoo Public 
Library 

 
Shared Leave 

Program 

 
The Shared Leave Program is an opportunity for Kalamazoo Public Library employees to 
voluntarily donate sick leave to a shared leave bank that will help an employee who is 
experiencing a serious health condition or has an immediate family member with a serious 
health condition, which requires or is likely to require the employee to take leave without pay 
because they have exhausted or are likely to exhaust their accrued sick leave, vacation and 
floating leave. 

 
The program will be enacted through letters of agreement between the library and the 
collective bargaining units and shall remain in effect for the duration of the respective 
Agreements. 

 

 
Guidelines 

 
1.   All employees who accrue sick leave and have been employed at least six 

months are eligible to participate. 
2.   All donated leave must be given voluntarily. No employee shall be coerced, 

threatened, intimidated or financially induced into donating leave. 
3.   Leave recipients will continue to accrue paid leave while utilizing Shared Leave. 
4.   Employees receiving workers compensation or short/long term disability are not 

eligible to receive leave from the Shared Leave Program. 

5.   If a leave recipient does not use all the shared leave approved, the unused leave will be 
returned to the Shared Leave Bank. 

6.   All of the leave recipient’s accrued leave must be exhausted before the additional Shared 

Leave Bank time can be used. 
7.   The amount of shared leave approved will depend upon the amount of sick leave, 

vacation and floating leave the employee has remaining. 
8.   A semi-annual report of the number of hours of sick leave donated and the number of 

shared leave hours provided to fulfill approved requests. will be published and shared 
with staff. 

9.   The Shared Leave Committee will meet at least annually to evaluate the program 
and make suggestions for improvement and recommendations regarding 
continuation. 

10. Administration, KPLA, KPLSP, and UKPLA will review the efficacy of the Shared Leave 
Program upon expiration of the respective letters of agreement. The parties reserve the 
right to negotiate continuation or termination of the program during future contract 
negotiations. 

 
Donation of leave 

 
Employees may make donations to the Shared Leave Bank by submitting a Shared 
Leave Bank donation form to the Head of Human Resources, requesting a specified 
number of hours of leave be transferred from their sick leave to the Shared Leave Bank. 
Donations will be accepted in June and December each year. The maximum donation 
allowed per fiscal year for a full-time employee is eighty hours (10 days), 40 hours in 
June and40 hours in December. In order to maintain the viability of the Shared Leave 
Program, and if a need exists as determined by Human Resources, employees 
separating from KPL may donate up to 100 hours to the Shared Leave Bank. 



5 
 

 

Donations from fractional time employees will be based on the fraction of time worked. 
Requests for leave transfers must be in one-hour increments. Donations to the Shared 
Leave Bank are irrevocable. 

 
If the balance of the Shared Leave Bank falls below a balance of 500 hour and become 
insufficient to meet existing requests outside of existing donation periods, a campaign for 
additional donations will be initiated. 

 
 
Application to become a leave recipient 

 
Employees must submit a written request in the form of an email or Shared Leave 
Request form to the Human Resources department in order to become a leave 
recipient. If an employee is not capable of submitting a written request , a personal 
representative, their department head or the Human Resources representative may 
submit the form on an employee’s behalf 

 
For a request for donated leave to be approved, the employee must: 

 
• Have completed six months of employment. 

• Provide certification (U. S. Department of Labor Certification of Health 
Care Provider form) from a licensed physician stating the employee or an 
immediate family member is being treated for a serious health condition. 

• Have exhausted all sick leave, vacation, floating leave, or PTO  (or 
provide credible medical evidence all leave time will be exhausted 
before the health condition is resolved). 

 
Allowable Hours Received 

 
The number of hours of leave an employee can receive is equal to the projected recovery 
or treatment period, or equal to the wait period for long term disability (when applicable) 
less the employee’s combined vacation, float and sick leave balance as of the beginning 
of the recovery or treatment period. 

 
The amount of leave a recipient may receive is 480 hours (prorated for part-time) in a 
rolling 12-month period either continuously or, if for the same condition, on a recurring 
basis. However, management may grant continuation, on a month-to-month basis, to a 
maximum of 960 hours, if management would have otherwise granted leave without pay 
in the absence of shared leave eligibility. Additional verification from a physician may be 
required. 

 
When necessary for hourly staff, an evaluation of the hours worked over the prior six- 
month period will determine the number of hours received on a weekly basis during a 
leave period. Requests must include a completed Shared Leave Request form and a U. 
S. Department of Labor Certification of Health Care Provider form. 

 
Approval or denial of application to become a leave recipient 

 
Applications for Shared Leave will be reviewed by the Head of Human Resources, who 
will approve or deny requests for shared leave based on the guidelines established by 
the Shared Leave Committee. 
The Human Resources department will notify the employee (or their personal 
representative) whether the request has been approved or denied within five working 
days after the date the application was received. Reasons for denying the request will be 
provided



5 
 

Denied requests may be appealed to the Director. The employee will be notified of the 
outcome within five working days of the appeal. The decision of the Director shall be final. 
 
 

Definitions 

 
Employee - Any employee of the Library who earns and accrues sick leave or PTO. 

 
Family Member – Spouses, domestic partner, parents, parents of a spouse/domestic partner, 
grandchildren, grandparents, siblings, other individual related by blood or chosen family. 
Chosen Family is defined as any other individual whose close association with the employee is 
the equivalent of a family relationship. 

 
Eligibility - All employees who accrue leave and have been employed at least 
six months are eligible to participate. 

 
Leave donor - An employee, employed at least six months, who makes a 
voluntary written request to transfer sick leave to the Shared Leave Bank. 

 
Leave recipient - A current employee, employed at least six months, for whom 
an application to receive leave from the Shared Leave Bank has been approved. 

 
Serious health condition – The employee or a family member of the employee must 
be suffering from a serious health condition as defined under the Family Medical Leave 
Act (FMLA). Under FMLA, “serious health condition” is defined as an illness, injury, 
impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves inpatient care or continuing 
treatment by a health care provider. 

 
Disability – An employee may use shared leave to cover any needed hours 

for the required disability waiting period. 

 
Birth of a child – The period of actual physical disability as a result of pregnancy and 

childbirth (normally eight weeks), as certified by a physician is a condition covered 
by this policy. Eligibility may be extended for complications related to pregnancy 
and delivery. 

 
Note: Although an employee may receive up to 12 weeks of Family & Medical Leave for 

birth, adoption or foster care placement, only the period of actual physical disability 
as a result of pregnancy or childbirth is covered under the Shared Leave Policy. 
The additional “bonding time” allowed under FMLA is not eligible for shared leave 
coverage. 

 
Shared Leave Committee – The Shared Leave Committee will consist of five members 
representing Administration, S-T, KPLSP, KPLA, UKPLA and other hourly employee 
groups..Each employee group will appoint a representative to serve on the committee. 
The Head of Human Resources  will represent Administrators. The Shared Leave 
Committee will establish guidelines for approving or denying shared leave requests and 
will meet annually to review, evaluate and suggest changes or improvements. Committee 
members will serve a term of two years. 

 
Shared Leave Bank – Hours donated by employees will be maintained in the Shared 

Leave Bank and will be available for distribution to eligible employees. 



5 
 

 
Year – A “rolling” 12-month period measured backward from the date an employee uses 
any Shared Leave. 

 
 
 
Questions 

 
Questions regarding the Shared Leave Program should be addressed to the Head of 
Human Resources. 

 
 
 
February 2007 
Updated December 2014 

Revised December 2016 
Revised February 2020 
Revised December 2021 
Revised March 2024 



Alma Powell Branch Library Report  
 
Staffing 

• Powell hourly staff are picking up shifts at Central Library (Children’s and Circulation) and 
Eastwood circulation.  

• Salaried staff have shifted our focus to outreach engagement and transitioning out of the space.  
 

Relocation of Previously Scheduled Alma Powell Programs  
Programs that were previously scheduled for the Powell location in the DCA or for the DCA Community 
Room have been moved to alternate spaces. Those events are listed below with the alternate spaces: 
 

• KIA Black Art with Arty the Art Detective February 20 relocated to Boys & Girls Club at DCA 

• First Saturday on March 2 relocated to Eastwood Branch Library Community Room 

• Powell Branch Challenge for Global Reading Challenge March 12 relocated to Lincoln School 

• For the People Poetry Workshop with Tasleem Jamila April 30 relocated to NACD Community 
Room 

• Musical Storybooks They All Saw a Cat with KSO relocated to NACD Community Room 

• First Saturday on April 6 relocated to Eastwood Branch Library Community Room Eastwood 

• First Saturday on May 4 relocated to Eastwood Branch Library Community Room 

• Dino Explorer program June 14 relocated to NACD Community Room 
 

Outreach Engagement 
NEW Deposit Collections have been added to the following locations:  

• Boys and Girls Club in the DCA 

• Interfaith Homes  

• Maple Grove  

• Prairie Gardens Senior Homes is PENDING 1501 N Blakeslee St 
 
NEW Outreach Locations: 

• YMCA Frank St Learning Center 

• A Child’s World at Northside Association for Community Development (at NACD) 

• Maple Grove residences (Powell LA Jermaine Jackson and Brian R Technical Services will be at 
Maple Grove on Monday, March 25th, during Spring Break) 

• Men of Purpose 114 Allen St PENDING Saturday March 23rd 6:30 pm 

• Synergy? PENDING Meeting with staff there on Thursday, March 14 . At this writing, the 
meeting hasn’t happened. Will report. 

 
Ongoing Daycare/Childcare Outreach Location: 

• New Genesis Preschool (four classrooms) 

• SEEDS Preschool at Mt. Zion (two classrooms) 

• North Park Head Start location (two classrooms) 

• New Life Head Start (three classrooms) 

• JDI (Jennings Development Institute)  



Outreach events  

• DCA Community Room KPL resource table at the February 12 Frederick Douglass event.  

• DCA Open House event Hallway KPL resource table February 13 

• CAPS (Community Advocates for Parents and Students) March 21st after-school event at 
Interfaith Community Center 

  
Powell staff provide support to additional Mobile Library stops on the Northside at these locations: 

• Interfaith Homes on Tuesdays and Thursday to correlate with CAPS programming 

• Douglas Apartments 

• Douglass Community Association  

• Maple Grove Apartments 

• Northside Ecumenical Senior Center 

Circulation Support 
• The KPL drop box remains in front of the DCA, still a convenient location for KPL patrons to 

return KPL circulating materials. 

• KPL Wi-Fi hotspots are available at outreach locations. Two of them have been circulated. 

• Metro Transit bus tokens are available at outreach locations but haven’t been used. 
 

Mobile Library  
In addition to other district stops in February, the Mobile Library Staff visited 4 sites for a total of 8 visits.   

• Interfaith Homes 

• Ecumenical Senior Center 

• Douglass Community Association 

• Douglas Apartments 

In March, the Mobile Library Staff will visit 5 sites for a total of 14 visits. 

• Interfaith Homes 

• Ecumenical Senior Center 

• North Park Reformed Church Head Start 

• Douglas Apartments 

• Douglass Community Center 

 

 

 
 

 



 
 
 

Director’s Report 
March 2024 

  
  
From the Interim Director:   
  
The KPL Plan 2023-2024 Vision: Leading a stronger community through literacy, learning and 
innovation.   
  
Core Values  

• We are committed to excellence in programs, services, and collections   

• We are community-focused   

• We are committed to and intentional about equity and anti-racism   

• We have safe, beautiful, and comfortable spaces   

• We are committed to continuous improvement and innovation   

• We have a passionate, engaged, knowledgeable, and creative staff   
  
Priorities  

• Strengthening Organizational Health 

• Advancing Equity and Inclusion: Library Services for All in our Diverse Community  

• Inspiring Literacy, Learning, and Engagement   
 

 
Facilities 

1. The Central Branch cooling tower replacement was successfully installed and will become 

operational in the next few weeks.  

2. The replacement flooring for the staff kitchenette at the Oshtemo branch has been ordered, and 

we anticipate the completion of this project along with the installation of a new refrigerator by 

the end of April. 

3. The facilities department is planning to repair concrete walkways at the Eastwood branch as 

soon as the weather allows. This work involves replacing at least five sections of concrete due to 

age and deterioration. The anticipated completion date for these repairs is by May 1st. To 

facilitate this, the branch will need to close for 2 days, though the exact dates are yet to be 

determined. The timing of the repairs is dependent on favorable weather conditions. 

 

 



 

Strengthening Organizational Health 
 

4. Sandra Farag asked the Youth Services staff to take the Kolbe Assessment so we can discover 

our strengths as a team. ONEplace’s Stacy Jackson let the department through the assessment. 

5. KPL has been awarded a one-year Wellness Fund grant of $150,000 from Stryker Johnston 

Foundation for the purpose of prioritizing and supporting the general wellbeing of our staff.  The 

library will be forming a staff group to determine staff needs and make recommendations for 

utilizing this general financial award. 

Advancing Equity and Inclusion: Library Services for All in our Diverse Community 

6. Pedro Martin, winner of the 2024 Pura Belpre Award and a Newbery Honor, visited Kalamazoo 

on March 5th.  He did a presentation at Milwood Middle School for the 6th graders whose 

teachers supported the visit by teaching his book as part of their curriculum so all the kids had 

read the book.  Pedro really enjoyed the posters they made where they answered questions 

about the book like who was their favorite character.  The book is a memoir and Pedro 

commented that that was the first time he thought of his family members as being 

characters.  He took pictures of the responses and sent them to his siblings.  In the afternoon, he 

did a presentation for the 4th and 5th graders at El Sol.  Then in the evening, he did a drawing 

challenge activity at El Concilio with the two after school tutoring groups that meet there, as 

well as, the group Ninas del Corazon, and a group of Spanish speaking students who recently 

emigrated to the U.S. that attend Milwood Middle School.  Attendees at all three events 

received signed copies of his book.  This is Pedro’s first book and this was his first time doing a 

visit like this to talk about the book so it will be as memorable for him as it was for the 

students.  He loved his visit to Kalamazoo. 

7. On February 19, Abbey Flentje and Kiersten Jouppi brought NYT-Bestselling young adult author 
Aiden Thomas (Cemetery Boys, Lost in the Never Woods, The Sunbearer Trials) to Kalamazoo for 
an author visit. Aiden's work centers on the intersection of queer Latinx identities and exciting 
fantasy stories. Aiden is also known for being the first ever trans author to be on the NYT Best 
Seller List. Staff took Aiden to Kalamazoo Central High School, where Abbey held an in-
conversation style talk with him, followed by questions from the audience and a signing. 
Approximately 100 kids and staff attended at KCHS.  In the evening, a similar in-conversation 
style talk was held at OSH.  This event saw approximately 40 people attend. 

 

 

Inspiring Literacy, Learning, and Engagement   
 

1. All KPL locations began giving away Eclipse glasses on Monday, March 4 in preparation for the 

April 8 solar eclipse. Eclipse glasses are available while supplies last. 

 



2. Youth Services and Community Engagement staff have been quite busy with KPS for our annual 

Global Reading Challenge! School level Global Reading Challenges are wrapping up. Advancing 

teams will challenge each other at branches the week of March 11, with the highly anticipated 

final happening at the Central Library on March 18. This has been another exceptional year for 

this program with 15 schools and over 140 teams participating.  

3. A new article about notable local painter Harold D. Landes was added to the Local History 

website. Landes, an early student at Guy H. Lockwood’s correspondence school, would have a 

long lasting impact on the Kalamazoo arts community and help put Kalamazoo on the map by 

bringing now world renowned figures to our city during the early part of the twentieth century.  

4. Hoopla Bonus Borrows are back! Midwest introduced the Bonus Borrows program, which allows 

patrons to check out specific titles that do not count toward their established monthly limit and 

without charging the library for these titles, during Covid shutdowns. Seen as a way to satisfy 

patron demand during times when physical access to libraries was limited, the program has 

come and gone a couple of times since we were in the depths of the pandemic. It is now back 

and patrons had a variety of titles to choose from during February.  
5. KPL launched our enhanced online card registration process through the vendor Patron Point 

back in Mid-December. Since that time, 229 patrons have registered for a full-use resident 

account entirely online.  We have been currently experiencing an unacceptable number of 

rejections of registrations through the system due to incorrect addresses, lack of time at an 

address to establish identity, incorrect name, issues with renter verification, etc.  The library is 

working with the vendor to improve the system’s success rate.   

6. WMU’s Haenicke Institute’s Chinese Language and Culture Programming presented a program 

for 21 enthusiastic patrons at the Oshtemo Branch on March 2. Patrons learned the 

fundamentals of Chinese ink painting together in this continued partnership between the 

Oshtemo Branch and WMU. Registration is now open for a Tai Chi program for adults and a 

Dragon Boat Festival program for families in May. 

7. CE Library Science intern, Sarah Van Eck, presented another successful series of Creativebug 

craft programs, sharing ideas from the library’s Creativebug database with over 60 patrons per 

topic at Eastwood, Oshtemo, and Washington Square. Several more Creativebug programs for 

adults are coming up this spring, including vegetable-printed tea towels in April.  

8. Branch Manager, Andrea Vernola presented a session on “Welcoming Homeschoolers to the 

Public Library” with colleagues from MCLS and Cadillac-Wexford District Library at the Michigan 

Library Association’s Spring Institute on Friday, March 8 in Muskegon. Over 50 library workers 

were in attendance to discuss the continued growth in numbers of homeschooled, virtual-

schooled, and unschooled youth patrons and their caregivers in Michigan. The session focused 

on understanding common information needs that libraries are well-positioned to support. 

9. Oshtemo youth librarians are planning for a dinosaur-themed Spring Break that includes a 

Jurassic World themed Lego exhibit and a Dino Dig program. Stop in and see the exhibit March 

28-30 during open hours at the Oshtemo Branch.  

10. Oshtemo librarians have been coordinating several volunteer work (and fun) sessions for Linden 

Grove’s Junior National Honor Society students this school year. To date, over 25 students have 

attended programs at Oshtemo creating displays and decorations, prepping craft supplies like 

“fossils” for the dinosaur programming coming up, and planning a teen mental health 



awareness program for May. We’re grateful for this new partnership with JNHS students, led by 

Mr. Spybrook from Linden Grove. 

11. The Washington Square Preschool Outreach Program brings storytimes out to the community 

and reached 230 children in the month of February, 150 which were children of color.  Locations 

that receive monthly visits during the school year are:  Loy Norrix Preschool, 2 PEEP classes at 

Edison Elementary and 2 classes at Washington Elementary, 3 preschool classes at the YMCA, 4 

Head Start classes, 3 classes at the Learning Village, Bread & Roses Child Care, and La Escuelita 

Horizonte at El Concilio.   

12. A standout program at Central this month was our mini golf course! Laura Bultman created ten 
themed mini golf “holes” in the VanDeusen room and families were invited to come play. People 
really enjoyed themselves and the feedback was great so going forward this will likely be an 
annual event. 

13. Laura Bultman started a new partnership with Tree of Life school, visiting their building to read 
to the younger grades and do an author study with the 1st/2nd grade classroom. The 3rd/4th grade 
classes came to tour the library as well. 

14. In February, the third book went home with all Head Start students as part of the collaboration 

between Ready to Read, Talking is Teaching, and KRESA. This time, all GSRP students also 

received the same book and materials. 

15. Kalamazoo Public School Literacy Nights took place on February 28th and 29th. It was all hands-

on deck from all KPL departments to make sure the events were pulled off successfully. Special 

shout out to the Youth Services, Tech Services, Administration, Marketing and Communications 

and KPL staff for their roles. It truly takes a village to support the youth in Kalamazoo! 

16. A partnership with the Kalamazoo Freedom School of Design has been rekindled by Jill Lansky 

and Angela Fortin. Monthly events called the Literacy Huddle will take place on Saturdays at the 

Central Library in February through May. Each month features project-based learning activities 

derived from expanded works from their integrated learning curriculum. The summer will 

include Mobile Library stops to their Kalamazoo College camp as well as garden locations in the 

community.  

17. Jill Lansky presented our Global Reading Challenge program to an interested group from Battle 

Creek Public Schools and the Willard Library. They will pilot a version of the program in 2025 

with the hopes that in the future, we will collaborate to choose the annual titles and develop a 

system to challenge the final team from Battle Creek.  

18. Teen Librarian Brianna Jackson hosted several successful programs such as the Just Dance 

Parties, Banned Book Club, Celebrating Black Art, Valentine’s Day vs. Anti-Valentine’s Day party, 

and Pokémon Terrariums.  

19. Natalie Isham visited the Kalamazoo Covenant Academy and provided books and account 
management to teens and young adults in need, over 25 in total. 

20. Sandra Farag has been selected to be a part of ALA’s award committee: Rise: Feminist Book 

Project for 2025. It is an award that evaluates youth literature from birth to 18 that promotes 

quality feminist literature for young readers. This award began in 2002 and is part of ALA’s 

Feminist Task Force and the Social Responsibilities Round Table.  

21. Kiersten Jouppi and Sandra Farage are working with Library of Michigan and several other 

Michigan libraries on an exciting Institute of Museum and Library Services grant project which 

provides multiple ways for youth to vet, assess, and consider how to be savvy as they navigate 

the internet universe. 



22. Technology Services has submitted all of the paperwork to become a passport acceptance 

facility. Our application is being reviewed and if approved we will begin training staff 

and offering this service to patrons.  

23. This Spring, ONEplace will be launching a several new opportunities for nonprofit boards 
including: 
• Nonprofit Board Executive Committee Brunch 
• Board Basics Workshop 
• Cause Driven Organizations Workshop 
 

 

KPL in the news 

https://www.mlive.com/news/kalamazoo/2024/01/how-a-kalamazoo-library-plans-to-continue-
services-after-it-closes-for-good.html 
  
https://www.mlive.com/news/kalamazoo/2024/02/not-fair-to-close-northside-library-before-
black-history-month-residents-say.html 
  
https://www.woodtv.com/news/kalamazoo-county/kalamazoo-library-seeking-comment-on-
what-to-do-about-alma-powell-branch/ 
  
https://www.wmuk.org/wmuk-news/2024-01-30/kpl-holds-a-public-forum-on-the-alma-powell-
library-branch-closure 
  
https://www.mlive.com/news/kalamazoo/2024/01/whats-next-as-kalamazoo-library-branch-
closes-2-public-forums-scheduled.html 
  
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=istGjkdwXvc 
  
https://www.mlive.com/news/kalamazoo/2024/01/kalamazoo-public-library-will-close-branch-
due-to-security-change.html 
 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.mlive.com/news/kalamazoo/2024/01/how-a-kalamazoo-library-plans-to-continue-services-after-it-closes-for-good.html
https://www.mlive.com/news/kalamazoo/2024/01/how-a-kalamazoo-library-plans-to-continue-services-after-it-closes-for-good.html
https://www.mlive.com/news/kalamazoo/2024/02/not-fair-to-close-northside-library-before-black-history-month-residents-say.html
https://www.mlive.com/news/kalamazoo/2024/02/not-fair-to-close-northside-library-before-black-history-month-residents-say.html
https://www.woodtv.com/news/kalamazoo-county/kalamazoo-library-seeking-comment-on-what-to-do-about-alma-powell-branch/
https://www.woodtv.com/news/kalamazoo-county/kalamazoo-library-seeking-comment-on-what-to-do-about-alma-powell-branch/
https://www.wmuk.org/wmuk-news/2024-01-30/kpl-holds-a-public-forum-on-the-alma-powell-library-branch-closure
https://www.wmuk.org/wmuk-news/2024-01-30/kpl-holds-a-public-forum-on-the-alma-powell-library-branch-closure
https://www.mlive.com/news/kalamazoo/2024/01/whats-next-as-kalamazoo-library-branch-closes-2-public-forums-scheduled.html
https://www.mlive.com/news/kalamazoo/2024/01/whats-next-as-kalamazoo-library-branch-closes-2-public-forums-scheduled.html
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=istGjkdwXvc
https://www.mlive.com/news/kalamazoo/2024/01/kalamazoo-public-library-will-close-branch-due-to-security-change.html
https://www.mlive.com/news/kalamazoo/2024/01/kalamazoo-public-library-will-close-branch-due-to-security-change.html


FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023

Year of Fiscal Year

0K

5K

10K

15K

20K

25K

30K

35K

40K

45K

50K

55K

60K

65K

70K

Ch
ec
ko
ut
s

26076

17191
17684

12679

12252

13288

32888

22980

10464

Kalamazoo Public Library
Board Report

Checkouts by Branch February

Library
DIGITAL
CENTRAL
OSHTEMO
WSQ
EASTWOOD
POWELL
MOBILE



Total DIGITAL CENTRAL EASTWOOD MOBILE OSHTEMO POWELL WASHINGTON ..

G
ra
nd
 T

ot
al

R
EA
D

BOOKS Total

ADULT

KIDS

TEEN

MAGAZINES Total

ADULT

KIDS

LI
ST
EN

MUSIC Total

ADULT

AUDIOBOOK Total

ADULT

KIDS

TEEN

W
A
TC
H
/L
EA
R
N MOVIES Total

ADULT

LEARNING Total

ADULT

O
TH
ER

GAMING Total

KIDS

LOT Total

ADULT

ON-ORDER Total

ADULT

4,85846533,0071233,70249,73932,888124,782

303

1,013

1,615

2,931

52

102

111

265

1,428

14,717

10,694

26,839

6

73

34

113

137

1,031

847

2,015

2,918

14,243

16,439

33,600

10,942

10,942

4,844

31,179

40,682

76,705

1

11

12

21

85

106

11

2

13

22

1

23

3,003

3,003

55

3,102

3,157

16

16

206

206

22

22

2,004

2,004

2,597

2,597

4,845

4,845

22

20

42

50

50

611

121

732

3

3

6

11

17

1

485

190

676

13,567

13,567

1

1,177

13,909

15,087

1,777

1,777

139

139

4,690

4,690

7

7

1,599

1,599

12,533

12,533

2,497

2,497

23,242

23,242

282

282

282

282

7

7

7

7

130

130

144

144

29

29

3

3

161

161

15

15

312

312

520

520

51

51

1

1

266

266

21

21

461

461

800

800

pg 1

Board Report FY 2023

Circulation Stats for February



Grand Total
Central Eastwood Oshtemo Powell Washington Square

4,552 301104761913574

pg 2

Board Report  FY 2023

 Computer Use for February

Grand Total Digital/Website Central Eastwood Oshtemo Powell Washington Square

105,887 78,097 17,082 1,233 7,392 309 1,774

Library Visits for February

Grand Total
Digital Central Eastwood Mobile Oshtemo Powell Washington Square

416 1838841423455

 New Users for February

Grand Total Law Library Central Eastwood Oshtemo Washington Square

Grand Total

Chat

In person

Phone 22

197

219

128

1,032

1,160

30

30

394

1,789

26

2,209

68

110

178

612

3,158

26

3,796

 Patron Interactions for February



Grand Total
FY 2023

Digital/Online Outreach Central Eastwood Oshtemo PowellWashington Squa..

Grand Total

Adult

Kids

Teen 21

106

31

158

2

6

8

2

2

1

8

6

15

6

3

9

13

24

12

49

5

59

9

73

1

1

2

pg3

Board Report  FY 2023

Number of Programs for February

Grand Total
Central Eastwood Mobile Oshtemo Powell Washington Square

2905 4812454182941281339

 Outreach by Branch # Attendees for February

Grand Total Central Eastwood Mobile Oshtemo PowellWashington Square

73 2210214520

 Outreach by Branch # Programs for February

Grand Total
Digital/Online Outreach Central Eastwood Oshtemo Powell

Washington
Square

Adult

Kids

Teen 616

3,290

426

5

7398

38

246

135

64

29

39

528

149

534

2281

90

0

23

 Number of Attendees for February



Searches Sessions

MeL & Other Databases

Local History

Law Library

Grand Total 710

0

456

254

6,858

248

5,902

708

pg4

Board Report  FY 2023

Database Stats for February

VIAMAIL 104

Grand Total
Ready to Read Central Eastwood Mobile Washington Square Oshtemo

3,948 100605293003,427

Books Distributed for February

MelCat (No stats reported)


	Board Agenda 3.18.24
	Board Minutes 2.5.24
	Board Minutes 2.26.24
	Financial Report Cover March
	KPL Feb 2024 Financials
	Cover - Shared Leave
	Shared Leave Program 2024 revision
	Alma Powell Report
	March Director Report
	Board Report -2-24

